
 

1 

 
Deerfield Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, May 14, 2013 at 7:00 PM 
City Commission Chambers, Deerfield Beach City Hall 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Robb at 7:02 p.m. on the above date in the 
City Commission Chambers, City Hall. 
  
Roll Call: 
 

Present:  Mr. Bill Ganz  
   Mr. Ben Preston 

Mr. Richard Rosenzweig 
   Vice Chair Joseph Miller 

    Chair Jean M. Robb 
         
 Also Present:  Burgess Hanson, City Manager 

Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney 
    Samantha Gillyard, CMC, Deputy City Clerk  
 
 Absent:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES     DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:02:38 
 
April 9, 2013 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Preston to approve the April 9, 
2013 minutes as submitted. 
 
Voice Vote: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA     DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:02:52 
 
May 14, 2013 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Preston and seconded by Mr. Rosenzweig to approve the 
May 14, 2013 agenda as submitted. 
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
 
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

2 
 

GENERAL ITEMS 
 
  ITEM 1    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:03:08 
 

CRA Resolution 2013/006 - A Resolution of the Community 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Deerfield Beach, Florida, to approve 
funding to provide July 4th fireworks. 
 

The Resolution was read by title only. 
 
Chair Robb asked if the fireworks would be launched from the end of the pier. 
 
Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, replied yes; the pier should be ready by then. 
 
Chair Robb questioned whether launching the fireworks from the pier would have an 
impact on the pier’s structural integrity. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that he also questioned that, but the timeframe for a barge may be too 
tight. 
 
Mr. Preston said that he has been told that the pier will be ready and he assumed that it 
means the structural integrity will be there.  He said people not being allowed on the 
pier is an issue. 
 
Mr. Rosenzweig said that the barge carries an additional cost of $30,000; he agreed 
with using the pier. 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Rosenzweig  to approve Item 
1, adopted CRA Resolution 2013/006.   
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
   ITEM 2    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:05:24 
 

CRA Resolution 2013/007 - A Resolution of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Deerfield Beach, Florida, to approve funding for a 
monument sign at the Pier Restaurant.    

 
There was no discussion on Item 2. 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Preston to approve Item 2, 
adopted CRA Resolution 2013/007.   
 
Sharon Cruz, Assistant City Attorney, said the funding amount needs to be included in 
the resolution. 
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

3 
 

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  
 
Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, replied that the cost will be approximately $18,000 - 
$22,000.   
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
   ITEM 3    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:06:30 
 

CRA Resolution 2013/008 – A Resolution of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Deerfield Beach, Florida, to approve Chen Moore 
Associates to design and permit private parking relocation and expansion 
as part of the Cove Gardens Project.   

 
Resolution was read by title only. 
 
Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, said that the funding amount is $5,480.00. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that this is in response to the residents that asked for changes. 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Ganz and seconded by Mr. Preston to approve Item 3, 
adopted CRA Resolution 2013/008.   
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
   ITEM 4    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:07:16 
 

CRA Resolution 2013/009 - A Resolution of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Deerfield Beach, Florida, to approve Chen Moore 
Associates for design  and permit improvements of the medians on SE 12th 
Avenue as part of the Cove Gardens Project.   

 
Resolution was read by title only. 
 
Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, said that funding is in the amount of $8,290.00.   
 
Mr. Ganz asked if there was a concern regarding the cost. 
 
Ms. Mory replied yes; as cost is unknown and has general feasibility.   
 
Mr. Ganz clarified that this is in response to suggestions by residents. 
 
Ms. Mory said that is correct.  
 
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

4 
 

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  
 
Vice Chair Miller said that he wanted this item because if the people who live on the 
island have to exit on the east side of Publix, they have to go through the neighborhood 
or make a u-turn which makes it functionally inept. 
 
Mr. Preston agreed with Vice Chair Miller, saying the turn is illegal and will alleviate 
strain in the area; nevertheless, it is a disaster waiting to happen. 
 
Mr. Rosenzweig asked if the property owner is interested in funding the project, so that 
it is not all from the CRA. 
 
Ms. Mory said she contacted the property manager and everyone who owns a plaza or 
commercial building, wants a right out and left out; however, she wants to be involved in 
the process.  She said she has not had an opportunity to reach out to the Hillsboro 
Boulevard properties, but will if the item is approved. 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Preston to approve Item 4, 
adopted CRA Resolution 2013/009.   
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Preston, Mr. Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Miller and Chair 
Robb.  NAYS: None. 
 
  ITEM 5    DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:11:03 
 
 FY 2014 CRA Budget Discussion  
 
In response to Mr. Rosenzweig’s comments, Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, said that 
this item does not require action, but wanted to inform the new board members of the 
budget process.  She provided a PowerPoint presentation on the budget. 
 
Basic CRA Budget Considerations - Ms. Mory said that the CRA is funded by tax 
increment revenue, which is different than the general fund.  She said those funds must be 
devoted to a project or activity and the money must be spent in three (3) years once 
received; the funds are used toward capital projects.  In the past 6 months, the CRA 
bonded funds and those funds do not intermingle with CRA tax increment revenue.  CRA 
funds are used to repay the debt service, but those bonds are held separately.  Also, tax 
increment revenue is completely separate from the City’s funds, and will not be 
intermingled.  When City services are used, an interlocal agreement is used to show the 
distinction. 
 
FY 2014 Considerations - Ms. Mory said that tax increment revenue is estimated at 
$2,145,000 for the next fiscal year.  In the budget, the first thing that has to be handled is 
debt service, bond funds; she provided the FY 2013 budget handout. She outlined the 
salaries covered by the CRA budget and other overhead, to include an annual service fee 
to the City of approximately $115,000.  Once fixed costs are paid, tax increment revenue is 
discretionary funding that the Board determines how to spend.   The 5 year capital 
improvement plan was created in 2011 and guides the Board on capital projects.  Over the  



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

5 
 

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED  
 
past couple of years, the Board began programs, including: community policing, 
commercial façade programs and special events.   
 
Ms. Mory outlined the budget detail report wherein, some of the items do not have values.  
She explained that some of the items changed and are determined by the finance 
department.  The Board would have to fill in the blanks which consist of programs and 
activities that the Board can consider funding.  Ms. Mory said that in FY 2013 there were 
budgeted funds for the design of Sullivan Park.  When the budget was approved last year, 
the CRA did not know it would be bonding, but thought it was a possibility.  She said there 
is enough in the budget to pay for the design, architectural and engineering services from 
the FY 2013 budget, but leaves the Board in a no carry over position.  Although it is not a 
good or bad thing, the Board will have to live off the TIF in FY 2014.  If no funds are 
carried over, there would be approximately $565,000 in discretionary funding next year.  
Some of the programs, including, commercial façade, community policing and special 
events are approximately $340,000, which leaves limited funds for capital projects.  One 
option is paying for Sullivan Park engineering from bond funds, which is an allowed use 
and it frees up tax increment revenue for discretionary projects.  One upcoming project 
that has not been completed was the entire expansion of Ocean Way, which consisted of 
replacing the north beach pavilion.  There are many other projects on the capital 
improvement plan that have been identified in the past, but have not yet been done.   
 
Vice Chair Miller asked if CRA money would pay for a pay and display in the main beach 
parking lot. 
 
Burgess Hanson, City Manager, replied no. 
 
Ms. Mory said that concludes her presentation.  She said that next month she will have a 
contract with Bermello Ajamil & Partners, Inc. for the Sullivan park design; the contract 
will be approximately $400,000 - $600,000. The Board has to determine the funding 
source.   
 
BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS   DIGITAL TIME STAMP: 7:21:58 
 
Interim CRA Director - Cove Gardens - Kris Mory, Interim CRA Director, provided 
three (3) renderings from the Cove Gardens project of what the finished streetscape will 
look like.   
 
Chair Robb - Turtle Lighting Report - Chair Robb said that she provided a copy of the 
report on turtle lighting, and said that whatever has to be done to correct the problems, 
to make sure the construction manager is responsible for the cost, and not the City. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that the change being requested on the report is part of the permitting 
and agreed that these things should have been in place and were not taken care of.  
Additionally, he asked that Mr. Gonzalez, a resident from a previous CRA meeting, be 
provided the Cove Gardens renderings.   
 
Mr. Preston said that he agrees that the City should not be responsible for paying any 
additional funds, but the contractor should be responsible.  He said that Staff should be  
 



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

6 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS - CONTINUED  
 
given a chance to work with the contractor to allow them an opportunity to take care of 
it. 
 
Keven Klopp, Assistant City Manager, said that the contractor will be held responsible 
for the things that were done improperly that Staff did not catch, but the State did when 
they did their inspection.  He outlined the certain in discrepancies that were not caught; 
a light fixture that should be black on the interior housing, but is tan.  The contractor 
ordered the wrong fixture, which was installed; therefore, he will be held responsible for 
getting the correct fixtures.  Also, the CRA changed plans after they had been approved 
by the State; added bollards and the spacing changed, which is inconsistent with the 
approved plan.  Staff has to correct the plans and present them to the State for 
accuracy.  He outlined other inadequacies that were found; missing baffles.  Although, 
the contractor said they would replace them, the City cannot hold them responsible 
because the baffles were properly installed and accepted.  There is a final category that 
Staff changed and it is not according to the State approved plan, and though they are 
still unlikely to agree, it will be negotiated to mitigate those impacts; notwithstanding, the 
contractor cannot be held responsible.   
 
Chair Robb said that the City should find out what was approved so the City does not 
have to pay for any changes. 
 
Vice Chair Miller commented on lights that cannot be seen from the west side of the 
building.  He asked why those lights are a problem.   
 
Mr. Klopp said that the sign on the west side of the building is inconsistent with the plan.  
When the plan was submitted, Staff did not know what type of lighting would be on the 
sign, but that they would be down lights pointing toward the building, lighting up a non-lit 
letter.  He explained that the State is saying that the lights are reflecting up on the 
building and creating a lit eave on the upper part of the building that they did not 
approve.  He recommended reducing the lighting or covering the top. 
 
Chair Robb said that she was not intending to speak on this now as Mr. Klopp has not 
had an opportunity to review it, but wanted to make sure everyone received a copy. 
 
Mr. Rosenzweig said this is like a punch list when you’re building a house and the 
contractor has to go back and fix those items. 
 
Mr. Preston agreed with Mr. Rosenzweig.  He said that the contractor should want to 
properly fix and please the residents and if not, it should be noted for future reference. 
 
Mr. Rosenzweig said that this is the management of the City, and Staff should know 
what the contract calls for; however, there is always something that is overlooked and 
the project has not been signed off.   
 
Mr. Klopp said the punch list is still active. 
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes        May 14, 2013 
 

7 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS - CONTINUED  
 
Community Policing – Ms. Mory said that the information is included in the agenda as 
the Board asked for specific information to evaluate the program.  She said if the Board 
wishes to have a different format, or get the report less frequently, to let her know.  
 
Mr. Ganz said that it justifies the program and is very helpful. 
 
Chair Robb asked if this service will be available with the pier diner hours. 
 
Ms. Mory replied yes.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:34 PM. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
       JEAN M. ROBB, CRA CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
ADA GRAHAM-JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
 


	Tuesday, May 14, 2013 at 7:00 PM
	The meeting was called to order by Chair Robb at 7:02 p.m. on the above date in the City Commission Chambers, City Hall.
	Roll Call:
	Samantha Gillyard, CMC, Deputy City Clerk
	approval of minutes     digital time stamp: 7:02:38
	approval of the agenda     digital time stamp: 7:02:52
	general items
	general items - continued
	general items - continued
	general items - continued



